
                                         YORK TOWN BOARD MEETING 

                                                   January 7th, 2025 

                                                           7:00 p.m. 

 

Present: Supervisor Gerald L. Deming, Councilmembers: Frank Rose Jr., Jason Swede,     

              Amos Smith and John Morgan 

 

Absent: None 

 

Others: George Worden (High Supt), Dwight Kanyuck (Town Attorney) Dustin Geiger, 

Francis Burger, Carl Peter (Zoning/Code Officer) Walter Pond and Kirk Richenberg. 

 

Supervisor Deming opened the Town Board meeting at 7:00 p.m. and invited 

Councilman Morgan to lead in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

MINUTES: 

RESOLUTION offered by Mr. Swede and seconded by Mr. Smith to approve the minutes 

of the January 1, 2025, Organizational Meeting. Voted on and approved, Yes-5, No-0. 

 

 

BILLS: 

RESOLUTION offered by Mr. Smith and seconded by Mr. Morgan to approve all claims 

brought before the Board. Voted on and approved, Yes-5, No-0. 

 

• General Fund Claim                # 1-25                   $24,520.94  

• Consolidated Water/Sewer      # 1-20                   $53,475.72 

• Highway Fund                         # 1-9                     $  3,016.75 

 

 

 

PRIVILEGES OF THE FLOOR: 

1)Kirk Richenberg: 

Mr. Richenberg requested privileges this evening to discuss with the Board the following 

topics: Highway and AKZO money usage. 

 

 Q- At the end of the year meeting you spoke about AKZO settlement money, can 

you elaborate further? 

 

Supervisor Deming replied that he requested $4 million dollars from the committee for 

the Town of York. The NYS DEC and Attorney General’s office has already approved 

$3.5 million, based on our already existing projects (pump station and River Road water 

main). These projects were initially listed on the County Plan when we started, and all 

bills will be submitted to the County for payment. 

 

 



 Q- Didn’t the Livingston County W/S Authority receive for the $14.5 million 

dollar project,s a grant…and where did it come from? 

 

Supervisor Deming answered they did receive a matching grant, and believes it was a 

WIIA (Water Infrastructure Improvement Program) grant. 

 

Councilman Smith commented, AKZO funds are covering the original project cost.  We 

now have full control over our project, we submit bills to the County as they have the 

funds to pay the claims. 

 

Q- You have pulled away from the County W/S project, what does that look like? 

 

Supervisor Deming replied he is not sure at this time, but knows we will have $4M to use 

in the Town of York 

 

 Q- How did you come to the $4M figure? 

 

Supervisor Deming answered the figure was based upon what we have roughly spent on 

waterlines since the AKZO collapse. 

 

 Q- What is our relationship with Geneseo? 

 

Supervisor Deming responded, we have a good relationship with Geneseo, no issues. 

 

 Q- When we still are purchasing water from the Village of Geneseo, how will that 

play out since they will be part of the County W/S project and York is not? 

 

Supervisor Deming commented that the Authority states they can sell water cheaper than 

the Village, which could happen for a period of time, but for how long. 

 

Comment: Mr. Richenberg stated they could change the price of selling water at any 

time. 

 

Supervisor Deming stated our current contract is with the Village of Genesee and will 

continue to be with the Village. 

 

Councilman Rose added, no one will ever abandon Conesus Lake. 

 

Comment: We need to have other sources 

 

 Q- Is there any connection with CPL? 

 

Supervisor Deming replied we are using the same mapping prepared by CPL, but we are 

bidding for engineering services. 

 



Comment: This is “good to hear, it’s about time.” We have attempted twice to obtain 

grant funding for the pump station, and didn’t receive money. 

 

  Q- Do we have an invoice for the new Highway truck and is the Town Board still 

waiting for the truck to be completed before making payment? 

 

Supervisor Deming replied we will be waiting to pay for it until the truck is ready to be 

picked up.  Mr. Worden added, the truck still belongs to Regional International and until 

all work has been completed, they own it until we are ready to pick it up along with an 

invoice. 

 

Councilman Swede also stated, Regional is providing a service to us for a complete truck, 

until it is done, then we will buy it.  Highway Supt. Worden added, Regional 

International hired Tenco, not us.  Councilman Swede stated once again our invoice will 

reflect a completed truck. 

 

Mr. Worden reported that both companies are holding firm on the price submitted. 

 

 

HIGHWAY REPORT: 

Mr. Worden reported the following for the Highway Department: 

• We have ordered salt for the season, and it is getting scarce 

• I spoke with Attorney Kanyuck earlier about bidding procedural questions 

• I had a resident approach me recently about signage for River Road and Chandler.  

Vehicles are traveling at very high speeds usually late in the evening and he asked 

for additional signage and/or blinking lights to be placed.  Mr. Worden 

commented he did not feel signage or lights would help the situation, but police 

presence periodically might. 

• We have been plowing and salting as needed. 

• Our new employee (Doug Baker) will start on January 13th. 

 

 

WATER/SEWER REPORT: 

Mr. Worden reported the following for the Water & Sewer Department: 

• Mr. Graves and Mr. Grant are attending lab class this week so Jim Hodges has 

been handling the plant and chores duties himself. 

• Thankfully, we are keeping water in the pipes with no issues. 

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

1)Comp Plan Draft: 

Supervisor Deming stated that we conducted the Public Hearing for the Comp Plan draft 

on December 3, 2024 but kept the comment period open until tonight’s meeting.  Ms. 

Hess indicated in a recent email that she received (1) email comment and Clerk Harris 

received one in the office yesterday as well.  Supervisor Deming commented that he has 

spoken with each of the Board members and all have agreed to table a decision in order 

to address some questions with the Comp Plan Committee.  



 

**email submitted to Ms. Hess directly: 

 Comment 1 of 1: I think it would be helpful to state in the text, and possibly in one 

of the maps, the number of acres of land in the Town that are under solar panels (not 

roof-tops) as of 12/31/2020 or 2018(?) vs. the total number of acres of land that will be 

under solar panels by 12/31/2026 if all currently known proposals are approved and 

constructed.  This will underscore the scope of the change in land use referred to 

repeatedly in the Plan. 

 

** Ms. Hess’ notes documented from the comments made at the 12/3/24 Hearing: 

 

1.Commenter #1 

 a. Not enough people responded to the survey to get an accurate picture of the 

Town or have enough data for the plan.  Mailings would be more effective. 

 

2.Commenter #2 

 a. The Future Land Use map does not show additional areas designated for 

commercial development and looks very similar to the existing zoning map.  York needs 

appropriate areas for commercial development. 

 

3.Commenter #3 

 a. The implementation section of the plan looks very well thought out and it will 

be good to see how the plan is implemented and what follows. 

 

4.Commenter #4 

 a. The process used to put together a steering committee to update the 

comprehensive plan was not transparent, it was not announced, nor were people invited.  

People were handpicked.  The committee does not represent the Town as there is not 

enough diversity in terms of income levels, ethnicity, age, or businesses.  Handpicking a 

committee was not supportive of a good planning process. 

 b. While the plan has a lot of data, pictures and interesting things, the previous 

plan was never followed.  Look at how many laws in the code were changed, how many 

variances.  The plan and zoning is not followed. 

 c. Can some of what was identified as smart growth/economic growth, be 

achieved by a Town like York? 

 d. Is a future trail being shown along an active railroad bed? 

 

5.Commenter #5 

 a. Implementation will be key! 

 

 

 

**Mr. Richenberg’s comments submitted: 

 

 



 



 



 



 
 

 



 



 

 



 



 



 



 

 



 



 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1)Pay App #6: 

 a- Genesee Valley Construction 

RESOLUTION offered by Mr. Smith and Seconded by Mr. Morgan to approve Pay App 

#6 for base Bid A, to Genesee Valley Construction, LLC in the amount of $28,500.00.  

Voted on and approved, Yes-5, No-0.  

 

 

2)RG&E gas line: 

Mr. Worden informed the Board after a conversation with a representative from RG&E 

regarding the York Road East 4” gas main request, they are adamant that the new line of 

approximately 3,012 feet of main will go only to York Milling & Grain, they have no 

plans to connect existing homeowners on this newer line. 

 

Councilman Morgan inquired as to when they wish to begin, which Mr. Worden replied 

they wanted to start in January, but we have a force main and gravity sewer in this area 

and there is not enough room. 

 

Supervisor Deming asked what are other options. 

 

Councilman Rose commented we certainly wouldn’t want them on top of our pipe in the 

event we needed to work on it, it would be very difficult to work around. 

 



Mr. Worden stated when a decision is made, he strongly suggests having an inspector 

onsite at RG&E’s expense to make sure our water & sewer lines are protected. 

 

Supervisor Deming commented that he fully agrees we should have an onsite inspector 

when the new gas main is installed. Mr. Deming added, we never heard back from RG&E 

regarding their request for the Retsof area. 

 

Attorney Kanyuck stated that he had a conversation with RG&E and the concerns they 

shared with him dealt with money to be expended for an inspector for the number of 

hours onsite. 

 

Mr. Worden replied our taxpayers should not be paying for this or any inspection 

necessary when installing new gas main where our existing lines are located.  We should 

not be utilizing inspectors from RG&E, it is necessary that we have inspectors that watch 

on our behalf.  Mr. Worden commented we have not had issues with RG&E in the past 

but still need to protect what we have. 

 

Mr. Worden stated that he has reviewed the maps, but their map and ours are not 

matching up. 

 

Attorney Kanyuck stated that he has a follow up call with the Attorney from RG&E on 

Thursday of this week. 

 

Councilman Rose commented once the road banking goes away, it will be very tight to 

work in and close to our infrastructure. 

 

Attorney Kanyuck inquired if the Town has a fee schedule for excavation, which Mr. 

Worden answered, we do not. 

 

Attorney Kanyuck replied we should have some answers after the call on Thursday.  

 

Mr. Worden stated that RG&E wanted to be at the 3-foot mark. 

 

Councilman Morgan replied they would need to go down further. When installing the 

new waterline on York Road West, we went down much further. 

 

 

After no further comments…. 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

RESOLUTION offered by Mr. Smith and seconded by Mr. Swede to adjourn the Town 

Board meeting until February 11, 2025.  Voted on and approved, Yes- 5, No- 0. 

 

 



 

 

Town Board meeting closed at 7:35 p.m. 

 

                                                                                   

                                                                                  Respectfully Submitted, 

                                                                                  Christine  Harris 

                                                                                  Christine M. Harris, Clerk 

 


